ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE JUDI CI ARY STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 4, 2015
1: 03 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Gabrielle LeDoux, Chair
Representative Wes Keller, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Neal Foster
Representative Matt C aman
Representative Bob Lynn
Representative Charisse MIllett
Representati ve Max G uenberg

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 4
"An Act relating to automated external defibrillators.”

- MOVED HB 4 OQUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 4

SHORT TI TLE: AUTOVATED EXTERNAL DEFI BRI LLATOR
SPONSOR(s) : REPRESENTATI VE(s) W LSON

01/ 21/ 15 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 9/ 15

01/ 21/ 15 (H) READ THE FI RST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 21/ 15 (H JUD

02/ 04/ 15 (H JUD AT 1:00 PM CAPI TOL 120

W TNESS REG STER

DOUG SCHRAGE, Fire Chief

Uni versity of Al aska, Fairbanks

Fai r banks, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: During the hearing of HB 4, testified in
support of the bill.

WENDY MACNAUHPON
Anerican Heart Associ ation

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -1- February 4, 2015



Anerican Stroke Associ ation
Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Duri ng
support of the bill.

JAM E MORGAN

Anerican Heart Associ ation
Anerican Stroke Associ ation
Sacramento, California

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Duri ng
support of the bill.

KRI STI N LUBY

Anerican Heart Associ ation
Anerican Stroke Associ ation
Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Duri ng
support of the bill.

SHERRY MODROW

Fai r banks, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Duri ng
support of the bill.

RON TEMPLETON
Uni versity Fire Departnent

t he

t he

t he

t he

Uni versity of Al aska, Fairbanks
Al aska Fire Chiefs Association

Fai r banks, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Duri ng
support of the bill.

JILL LEW S, Deputy Director
D vision of Public Health
Department of Health & Soci al
Juneau, Al aska
POSI TI ON  STATEMENT:

M CHAEL LEVY, Medical Director

Anchor age Fire Departnent

Anchor age Areaw de Energency Medi cal

Anchor age, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT:
support of the bill.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE

t he

heari ng

heari ng

heari ng

heari ng

heari ng

Servi ces

Testified
services training for AEDs regarding HB 4.

regar di ng

of

of

of

of

of

Servi ces

During the hearing of

HB

HB

HB

HB

HB

testified

testified

testified

testified

testified

energency nedica

HB

4,

testified

in

February 4, 2015



1: 03: 22 PM

CHAIR GABRIELLE LEDOUX <called the House Judiciary Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 1:03 p.m Representatives Foster
Keller, Canman, and LeDoux were present at the call to order
Representatives Lynn, Guenberg and Mllett arrived as the
meeting was in progress.

AEhb4
HB  4- AUTOVATED EXTERNAL DEFI BRI LLATOR

1: 03: 53 PM

CHAI R LEDOUX announced that the only order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 4 "An Act relating to automated externa
defibrillators."”

1: 04: 13 PM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON testified as prine sponsor on behalf of
the Alaska Fire Chiefs Association. She stated that HB 4 would
reduce inpedinent in state law to allow nore public access to
Automated External Defibrillators (AEDs). She stated that
sudden cardiac arrest is a |leading cause of death in the United
States resulting in approxi mately 350,000 deaths per year as for

each m nut e sudden cardi ac arrest is unt r eat ed by
defibrillation, the survival chance decreases seven percent in
the first three mnutes, and ten percent thereafter. She

offered that AEDs can be used safely by an untrained bystander
to restore a normal cardiac rhythm in soneone who is in sudden
cardiac arrest. \Wen the device is turned on, it provides step-
by-step verbal and witten instruction and, she noted, these
devi ces have an inpressive success rate. Representative W1 son
then showed a video depicting the verbal instructions attached
to an AED. She explained that the video shows exactly how it
will speak to an individual. She added that there are now
devices that wll also perform cardiopul nonary resuscitation
(CPR) and wal k an individual through CPR She presented that
the use of AEDs are currently covered by the Al aska Good
Samaritan Law and are designed to encourage woul d-be rescuers to

take action wthout fear of [litigation. However, the Al aska
Good Samaritan Law attaches conditions to building owners and
institutions that provide AEDs. These conditions include the

requirenent of providing training, nmaintenance, a neans of
notifying 911, and registering the device with energency nedi cal

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 3- February 4, 2015



services (EMS.) She opined that renoving certain conditions and
requi renents will increase the nunber of AEDs in conmunities.

1: 08: 50 PM

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON showed a video entitled The Future of
AEDs.

1: 10: 21 PM

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON described AEDs as becomng easier to
utilize as was depicted on the video, and that a nedical
prof essional was able to see the patient. Wthin big cities
where the wait time may be |longer for EMS, these devices could
be utilized, she opined.

1:11: 11 PM

DOUG SCHRAGE, Fire Chief, University of Al aska Fairbanks, stated
he represents the Alaska Fire Chiefs Association and that the
associ ation urges support for HB 4. In his line of work, he
noted, the speed of response is relied upon for fires and
nmedi cal emergenci es. In order to save |ives energency services
rely on the intervention of ordinary bystanders to fill in the
gaps before it arrives on scene. He described bystanders as
citizens willing to step up and act to save another person's
life. This is why fire extinguishers and AEDs are provided in
public places, he said. However, he explained, the maxinmm
benefits are derived only if they are inmediately available to a
patient in need. Evi dence shows that untrained |ay persons can
safely and effectively use an AED w thout risk of accidental
shock to the rescuer or patient, he noted. He expressed that
this is not a bill about discontinuing CPR and AED training and
mai nt enance prograns, nor de-enphasizing device registration, or
energency notification as it is about making nore AEDs avail abl e

to the public. The association believes strongly in the
importance of first aid, CPR and AED training, regul ar
mai nt enance and registration of these devices. However, he
related, civil immunity |aws have shown to be an inpedinent to
the acquisition of AEDs as it increases liability rather than
provides immunity from it. Furthernore, he offered, recent
trends in litigation suggest that a facility w thout an AED may
be subject to nore liability than one wth an AED. He

highlighted that there is anecdotal evidence that these
requi renents are preventing Alaskan building owners from
providing AEDs in their facilities. In other cases building
owners are limting the use of their AEDs from the public where

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -4- February 4, 2015



they can nost effectively be used. As a result, people nmay be
needl essly dying who mght otherwi se be revived from access to
t he AED.

1: 14: 06 PM

CHAI R LEDOUX questioned whether people have had heart attacks
and building owners have refused to allow an individual to use
t he AED.

MR. SCHRACE responded in the affirmative. He used the exanple
of this building wherein outside this room in the hallway,
there is a cabinet with an AED in it. On the cabinet is a | abel
that effectively reads that wuse by wuntrained personnel is
prohi bi t ed. In that regard, a rescuer would see that |abel and
be deterred from using the AED and, therefore, a patient may go
unattended for a certain anmount of tinme. He pointed out that as
was shown in the video, these devices can be used easily by
sonmeone w thout any prior training.

1:15: 12 PM

MR. SCHRAGE continued that there are 80 plus buildings at the
University of Al aska Fairbanks (UAF) and barely a dozen AEDs.
He advised that 1its general counsel concluded there is a
noderate risk of a lawsuit due to the placenent of AEDs, and

that UAF cannot adequately assure there wll al wvays be
appropriate people trained to use the device or able to conply
Wi th mai nt enance requi renents. Four of t he | eadi ng

manuf acturers of AEDs recommend daily maintenance checks and in
a large institution the ability to ensure that the manufacturer
mai nt enance recomendations are conplied with make it nearly
i npossi ble, he stated. He opined that the primarily goal of AED
Good Samaritan legislation should be to offer liability
protection to all of the AED program constituents wth the
objective of putting nore AEDs in service. Model  AED
| egislation should not condition immunity upon conpliance wth
any of those requirenents. He offered that the association is
not aware of any opposition to HB 4.

1:17: 53 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FOSTER referred to Ms. Schrage's statenent that
there was no risk of shock, yet the video depicted that the
pati ent should not be touched while the shock is adm nistered.
He asked the result if an individual is touched while the shock
is adm ni stered.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 5- February 4, 2015



M5. SCHRAGE answered that the conventional thinking, and
programng of all the current devices is that there was a risk
to the rescuer being shocked. However, he noted, research is
currently underway in Washington wherein researchers perforned
CPR chest conpressions on a patient while a doctor delivered a
shock and in numerous instances no shock was felt by the
rescuer. He expects that the guidance provided during training
wll be nodified to reflect the change

1:18: 50 PM
REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked the typical cost of an AED.

MR. SCHRAGE responded that typically the cost is $1,500, which
i ncl udes the cabinet and everything that goes init.

1:19: 07 PM

MR. SCHRAGE, in responding to Representative Lynn, answered that
the battery and patches are all that is involved in maintenance.
A qui ck mai ntenance check is basically to ensure that the device
is in place and charged up. The batteries have a shelf life of
around five years and nust be replaced. Part of the naintenance
check to ascertain that the patches have not been exposed to air
which affects the stickiness, and if they have they should be
replaced as they will dry out. Beyond that, there is really no
mai nt enance to the devices, he remarked.

1: 20: 11 PM

MR. SCHRAGE responded to Representative MIllett that to his
know edge AED devi ces do not have to be replaced and do not have
a shelf life. He stated that Biphasic Technology is currently
being used which is a nore effective way of delivering the
el ectrical shock.

1: 20: 46 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN inquired as to the survival rate with CPR
versus CPR conbi ned with AEDs.

MR. SCHRAGE said that it is partly determned by the cardiac
dysrhythma being experienced. The AED only works on
ventricular fibrillation wherein the electrical signal doesn't
follow the normal pathways that cause the nuscle to contract in
an organi zed way. He explained that when the machine instructs

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 6- February 4, 2015



the user to stand back it is analyzing rhythm and attenpting to
sense the presence of the fib, in the absence of that, it wll
recommend CPR only.

1: 22: 07 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN questioned the statistical inprovenent of
survivability of heart events when an AED is use versus not in
use. He stated his nmenory is that there is a significantly
i ncreased success rate when an AED is in the m x.

MR. SCHRACGE advised he could not cite the exact statistic but
would say the inprovenent goes well beyond that statistical
signi ficance.

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN rel ated that part of what is being witten
out in this statute is broadly described as a registration
requirenent. For exanpl e, he described, a restaurant owner has
an AED in the building and the owner is supposed to notify the
fire departnment in his community that he has an AED - which is
being taken out of the statute under this bill. He asked how
reliable business owners were in notifying the fire departnent
of an AED and whether there is there a program in place that
busi nesses would routinely let the fire department know, if it
is not part of the statutory requirenent.

MR. SCHRAGE answered that virtually no one conplies with the
requi renent of notifying the fire departnent of the AED. There
is a registry and people pronoting inprovenment in cardiac arrest
survival rates feel strongly that the registry is an inportant

conponent of that inprovenent effort. There is an app for a
tel ephone that will allow an individual to enroll in the system
and be alerted if they know CPR to the location of a patient
nearby and the location of the nearest AED. The associ ation

believes the registry is very inportant, but stipulating this
requirenent as a condition for imunity is msplaced, so it is
| aunching other efforts to pronote conpliance for the registry,
he of f er ed.

1:25: 36 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN noted a reference in the bill for
basically Good Sanaritan application to the owner of an AED, to
be put on the wall. He requested an exanple that would

constitute gross negligence in which a business owner could be
exposed to liability.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -7- February 4, 2015



MR. SCHRAGE offered that he has had no training in law and is
not qualified but could envision few circunstances where the
failure of an AED to operate, or even if an AED does operate
that it would rise to the | evel of gross negligence.

1: 26: 40 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN assessed that the biggest naintenance
issue was batteries and patches and noted that checking daily
probably doesn't happen anywhere. He asked if there was a
potential for an AED being unused and on the wall for ten years,
the batteries would be dead and soneone tried to use it later -
is that an issue.

MR. SCHRAGE said that nodern AEDs have, |ike snoke detectors,
when the battery gets low it chirps to alert people it is tinme
to replace the battery.

1:27:51 PM

CHAIR LEDQUX clarified that HB 4 does not elimnate the
requirenment for reporting to the registry, the bill just reads
that not reporting is not sonmething that wll deprive an
i ndi vidual of inmmunity. She questioned iif the reporting

provi sions are in another place of the statute.

MR. SCHRACGE stated that to his know edge it does not exist
anywhere el se.

1: 28: 29 PM

CHAIR LEDOUX referred to the shock delivered from the AED,
assum ng research does not indicate an individual would not
receive a shock, and questioned whether an accidental shock is
| et hal .

MR. SCHRAGE specul ated that it would not be a |ethal shock. The
AED typically starts at 200 joules, which is a snmall anpbunt of
electricity, and the placenent of the electrode pads is such
that it directs the energy straight through the heart nuscle and
nost of the energy is contained between the two el ectrodes. He
pointed out that the machine is sophisticated in that it
recogni zes a normal sinus rhythmand woul d not deliver a shock.

1: 29: 53 PM

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 8- February 4, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE W LSON said she recognizes that unintended shock
was a concern at schools with AEDs and with technology it just
does not happen.

1: 30: 27 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER asked if Alaska would be the first state
as far as removing the potential liability or have other states
gone ahead.

MR. SCHRACE answered that California introduced nearly identical
| egi sl ation.

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER inquired what the procedure is after an
AED is used, whether batteries are replaced, and the cost.

MR. SCHRAGE offered that the batteries can be recharged or
replaced, and the electrodes nust be restored. The EMS
providers nust be able to upload from the device the data it
recorded regarding the cardiac rhythm

1: 31: 37 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER pointed out that the use of the word
"gross negligence"” is a word that is not defined and questioned
t he neani ng of gross negligence.

MR. SCHRACGE advised he does not feel qualified to answer that
guesti on.

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON read the Departnent of Law s definition
for gross negligence. "I wll now define gross negligence for
you. First, you nust understand what ordinary negligence neans.
Negligence is the failure to use reasonable care which is the
anount of care a reasonable careful person would use in the sane
situation. Gross negligence is an extrene departure from this
st andar d. Gross negl i gence neans nore than ordinary
i nadvertence or inattention but |ess than conscious indifference
or consequences. "

1: 32: 52 PM

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN assuned that in the event an individual was
experiencing blockage of the heart, that the AED would not
adm ni ster the shock.

MR SCHRAGE answered in the affirmati ve.

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 9- February 4, 2015



1:33: 20 PM
REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked whether there are age limtations.

MR. SCHRAGE advised that AEDs are designed for any age of an
adult patient, 15, 16, 17 and on up. They are not designed to
be used on children and there is virtually no occurrence of
ventricular fibrillation in child patients, he opined.

1: 34: 08 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FOSTER asked when an AED is used and the pads are
not replaced and dry out, whether there is some kind of
protection built in for gross negligence.

MR SCHRAGCGE stated "not that | am aware of."
1: 34: 49 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FOSTER asked if statistically there is a heart
event where the AED wll apply and be helpful 1in those
si tuati ons.

MR. SCHRAGE replied that in the case of wtnessed cardiac
arrest, approximately 35 percent of the instances are
ventricular fibrillation.

REPRESENTATIVE WLSON nentioned that nore AEDs are being
produced that include the CPR portion where it counts for the
rescuer, and indicates when to take the breath.

1: 36: 20 PM

REPRESENTATI VE FOSTER i nquired whether the AED will instruct the
rescuer in a defibrillation and CPR situation.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON responded to Representative Foster "that
is correct.” She responded to Representative Lynn that when
AEDs were placed in the schools "we" bought pads for children
and there was a case where a fifth grader in Texas went down in
the hallway, and the school had a defibrillator and fibrillated
that child' s life. There was an additional cost "we" had to
raise so "we" had pads for children because nost conme wth pads
for adults.

1: 37: 06 PM

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -10- February 4, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that the text of the bill wll
change from citing specific exanples "where they would renain

negligent liability" to sinply a standard of gross negligence.
He opined the court <could interpret the change two ways,
allow ng nore exanples of gross negligence and not limting it

to AL B and C, but anything that could be gross negligence.
Another way would be to interpret it as a higher standard so
that these things currently listed would no |longer fall wunder
the definition of gross negligence but sinple negligence. He
stated it is anbiguously witten because it doesn't clarify
whi ch way is intended.

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON stated that current law is such that
buil ding owners nust basically say they know that everyone in
the building is trained. The intent is to require "people who
are maybe trained, or just know how to follow direction when
bei ng spoken. ™

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG advi sed he is attenpting to ascertain
that a court or |lawer who has never seen this before, opens the
[statutes] and «clearly understands Representative WIlson's
i ntent.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON said that anyone can sue and go before a
judge, but this bill clarifies the intention.

1: 43: 48 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG referred to a statenment that one or
nmore manufacturers has recommended that AEDs be tested daily and
if that is standard then probably anyone who installs them is
violating the standard and, he opined, that standard may be used
by a court as setting the standard of due care.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON offered that in a perfect world the nore
an individual checks on any electronic device the better it wll
be. Al so, she remarked, the manufacturer probably did not
update its recomendations because it would rather be on the
saf er side.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG offered that in court the plaintiff
would sue the building owner and the manufacturer and the
question beconmes who is liable. The manufacturer would say the
building owner is liable because the AED is not nmaintained
properly. He explained that there is the concept of strict
liability against sone of the people who manufacture these

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -11- February 4, 2015



products and in those cases negligence doesn't have to be shown,
just that there was a causal rel ationship.

CHAI R LEDOUX stated she has practiced personal injury l|law and
does not have any probl em understanding the bill.

1:47:41 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN asked M. Schrage in ternms of the
mai nt enance and the batteries, when an individual is in de-fib
and EMS takes the AED to the hospital with them whether the
mai ntenance is that it would need new pads and the batteries
checked for charge.

MS5. SCHRAGE agreed and stated that the scenario is subject to
variations in EMS systens. Some EMS technicians may choose to
service the device at the scene as they are able to upload the
i nformation.

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN renarked that the building owner in that
setting should not expect the AED to stay in the building as it
is nmore likely to go with the EMS.

MR. SCHRAGE opi ned that was a reasonabl e expectati on.
1:49: 05 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN asked if 12 is the adult age for purposes
of CPR

MR. SCHRACGE responded that for purposes of CPR an adult is eight
years ol d. He stated that the incidents of ventricular
fibrillation in children is not non-existent but is virtually
absent.

1:49: 47 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN asked that in terns of the entire statute,
subsection (a), which is not being anmended basically reads that
a person using an AED has the Good Samaritan protections under
subsection (a).

MR. SCHRAGE responded "that is our intent."

REPRESENTATI VE CLANMAN noted that what is being nodified is
subsection (b) which is essentially that a business owner is

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -12- February 4, 2015



subject to a gross negligence standard for how the AED is or is
not maintained at its place of business.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON stated "that is correct."”

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN further noted that subsection (c) is not
bei ng changed that would apply an ordinary negligence standard
for the manufacturer.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON advi sed "that is correct al so."
1: 50: 42 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAVAN surm sed t hat wth respect to
Representative Guenberg's questions, the intent between the
manuf acturer and the business owner is that the business owner
is essentially being told to rely on the manufacturer to build
the nmachines correctly as long as there is an AED in the

busi ness owners shop. The business owner will not be held out
to knowi ng nore than the AED manufacturer does and the business
owner wll be held to a |esser standard. He inquired as to

whet her that is the intent of the |egislation.

REPRESENTATI VE WLSON agreed and opined that nost building
owners believe the Good Samaritan Act already covers them

1: 51: 28 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN stated that gross negligence would be when
the building owner had repeatedly been told the batteries were
dead, and was aware of it for a couple of years and never took
the AED out of the public place or replaced the batteries. In
that scenario there may be a claim for gross negligence but it
would be up to the court as to whether it would succeed, he
sai d.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON opined that a building is not required to
have an AED, so for the building ower to go to the extent of
putting themin and yet not perform any training or maintenance
made no sense to her. She further opined that nopbst constituents
believe they are covered by statute, and are not.

1:53:20 PM
REPRESENTATI VE  GRUENBERG questioned if the standard in

subsection (c), dealing wth the mnufacturer, raises the
standard that would normally be required to sue a manufacturer

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -13- February 4, 2015



regarding a potentially dangerous instrunent. He further
gquestioned if this insulates the [AED] manufacturer where other
manuf acturers woul d not be so insul at ed.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON responded there may be assistance on-Iline
to answer Representative G uenberg's question.

REPRESENTATI VE  GRUENBERG reiterated whether the existing
standard in subsection (c), which inposes a standard of
negli gence by statute, raises the standard of strict liability.

CHAI R LEDOQUX opened public testinony.
1:56: 14 PM

VENDY MACNAUHPON, Anerican Heart Association, American Stroke
Associ ation, stated that the Anerican Heart Association realizes
that every mnute counts when an individual experiences sudden
cardiac arrest. She opined it is inportant to renove the
i npedi rent provisions of AEDs in public places as it wll
provi de nore opportunities for Good Samaritans to act and nore
lives saved.

1: 57: 09 PM

JAME MORGAN, Anerican Heart Association, American Stroke
Association, affirmed that the associations are very much in
support of HB 4 as they believe increased access to AEDs wl|
result in nore lives saved.

1:57:49 PM

KRI STIN LUBY, Anerican Heart Association, Anerican Stroke
Associ ation, stated she supports HB 4 as it will renove barriers
that inhibit current businesses from installing AEDs in their
building. "Time is nuscle" as every mnute an individual is in
cardiac arrest and not being treated or receiving assistance
counts, and tinme is the heart nuscle dying. She related that
passage of HB 4 will result in increased access to AEDs and help

provi de nore opportunities for Good Samaritans to act, and nore
lives saved.

1:59: 13 PM
SHERRY MODROW advised she is representing herself and agrees

with M. Schrage. She supports the Anerican Heart Association
and would like to see AEDs installed in many places, and

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -14- February 4, 2015



byst anders be encouraged to use AEDs. She offered that she is a
full time volunteer at UAF and would |ike to see AEDs avail abl e
on canpuses as well as across Al askan communities.

2: 00: 52 PM

RON TEMPLETON, University Fire Departnent, University of Al aska
Fai rbanks, Alaska Fire Chiefs Association, stated his support
for HB 4 is nore of a personal nature in that his wife passed of
heart disease in 2007. Unfortunately, he noted, when his wfe
passed she was not sonmewhere that AEDs woul d have been any good
- she was at home. He stated he has cone to realize that heart
di sease is a profound killer of wonen in America and HB 4 will
renmove inpedinents that corporations and businesses have of
putting AEDs in communities to be utilized. He expressed that
if only one life can be saved it is worth all of the effort - it
is inmportant AEDs are available for wuse and that [building
owners] do not have to worry about liability.

2:02: 52 PM

JILL LEWS, Deputy Director, Division of Public Health,
Departnment of Health & Social Services, stated that Energency
Medi cal Service (EMS) is under the Division of Public Health,
and it certifies EMS technicians, and also has the
responsibility for pronoting and ensuring conpetent workforce
and infrastructure for EMS. The division is responsible for
training in terns of approving training and trainers for AEDs.
She clarified that EMIs would still be required to receive
training and the division would continue to performas above.

CHAI R LEDOUX closed public testinony after ascertaining no one
further wished to testify.

2:04:15 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG referred to subsection (c) and
par aphrased, "The inmunity provided by (b) if this section which
we are anending here, does not apply to a manufacturer of an
automated external defibrillator” which, he opined, neans that
the rest of common |aw and statutory law in Al aska does apply.
He said he assumes that would include strict liability and,
therefore, is already covered.

2: 05: 30 PM

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 15- February 4, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN offered that the question of strict
l[iability and not strict Iliability is what constitutes a
dangerous product that may nmake it subject to strict liability
which is part of common | aw. He added that where an AED is or
is not a dangerous product and whether that would qualify as
strict liability or not strict liability is sonething best |eft
to the courts.

2:06: 33 PM

REPRESENTATI VE M LLETT advised that the incentive behind this
bill is to take liability away and nmake Al askan comrunities
safer places to live. As a wonan, she offered, she likes the
legislation as it serves its purpose very well, is signing on as
a co-sponsor, and hopes the bill passes out of conmmttee today
as is.

2:07: 25 PM

CHAI R LEDOUX said she intended to pass out but is now wondering
whether this should say "civil damages resulting from gross
negl i gence, or intentional, or reckless conduct." She
guesti oned whet her the bill sponsor had a comment.

REPRESENTATI VE W LSON responded that [HB 4] has been vetted
through the fire departnent council as well as the Anerican Red
Cross and others who were supportive or neutral on the |anguage.
She advised she is confortable with the current |anguage as it
does acconplish the intent.

2:08: 39 PM

The conmttee took an at-ease from2:08 p.m to 2:14 p. m
The conmittee treated public testinony as being open.
2:14: 30 PM

M CHAEL LEVY, WMedical Director, Anchorage Fire Departnent,
Anchorage Areawi de Energency Medical Services, advised he is
President of the Loren Marshall Foundation, which is a
foundation that provides opportunities for citizens to learn
CPR;, he is on the Board of Directors, National Association of
EMS Physicians; and is the principal investigator of the Heart
Rescue Project in Al aska. Therefore, he said, he has extensive
ongoi ng experience with cardiac arrest. He offered that if any
barriers could be lowered regarding AEDs in the community it

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -16- February 4, 2015



woul d benefit Al askan citizens. He related that AEDs should be
as widely distributed as are fire extinguishers, and readily
avai lable to any individual wtnessing a cardiac arrest. There
is no question AEDs are an inportant and relatively inexpensive
life saving neasure that when applied early has the best
opportunity for success. He highlighted that when individuals
feel they are at risk of legal ramfications by having the
device or any other sort of encunbrances, it does not pronote
the availability of AEDs. He offered that the devices can be
safely used by the public.

2:16:51 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG questioned whether there is evidence
that changing the standard wll cause nore people to install
AEDs.

DR. LEVY renarked that he is unaware of any study in Al aska that
this would cause a change, however, nationw de people have
declined being involved due to the threat of litigation.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked whether there was evidence that
anything else could be perforned, other than changing the tort
standard of liability, to encourage people to install AEDs.

DR. LEVY responded that possibly from a |egislative standpoint
it could be required that places where the public gathers mnust
have AEDs, in full public view, as a public safety neasure.
REPRESENTATI VE CGRUENBERG inquired as to whether any other
jurisdiction had done anything else to either encourage or
require the installation of AEDs.

DR. LEVY stated he is "unaware of anyone doing that," but is not
an expert.

CHAI R LEDOUX closed public testinony after ascertaining no one
further wished to testify.

2:19:52 PM
REPRESENTATI VE KELLER advi sed he was ready to nake a noti on.
REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG obj ect ed.

2:20:42 PM

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE -17- February 4, 2015



REPRESENTATI VE CLAMAN noted that an earlier witness stated only
California has enacted a statute simlar to this |egislation.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG advi sed that his question was whether
any other jurisdiction had done anything el se.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG wi t hdrew hi s obj ecti on.

2:21:48 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to report HB 4 out of conmttee with
i ndi vidual recomrendations and the acconpanying fiscal notes.

There being no objection, HB 4 noved from the House Judiciary
Standing Committee

2:22: 10 PM
#
ADJ OQURNIVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Judi ciary Standing Conmittee neeting was adjourned at 2:22 p. m

HOUSE JUD COW TTEE - 18- February 4, 2015



